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Questions and Answers

Q.1.  Are Offerors required to have a Top Secret Facility Clearance at the time of award, or can the awardee obtain the clearance after award? If the former, is an Interim Top Secret Facility Clearances acceptable?

Answer to Q.1.:  The Offerors are required to have a Top Secret Facility Clearance at the time of award.  

Q.2.  How is inventory management handled in Audio Visual (AV) equipment?  

Answer to Q.2.: The contractor shall manage the inventory of Audio Visual Equipment (See SOW, Section 13.1)

Q.3. What type of support is required to the off-site “swing space” during the renovation?
Answer to Q.3.:  The only support required for the off-site “swing space” during the renovation is mail delivery and pick up, including shipments from UPS, FedEx, and other carriers.  (See SOW, Section 5.0) 

Q.4. Does Executive Order to hire the incumbent apply?  If so, will you provide a list of names?
Answer to Q.4.:  No.
Q.5. Please clarify what you mean by the walls going away?
Answer to Q.5.:  During the renovation, some of the walls in the corridor will be removed in order to create a more open floor plan.

Q.6.  Does staff handle classified mail?
Answer to Q.6.:   The Mail Room does not handle classified mail.  The NASA Security Inspector receives all classified mail. If the Mail Room receives any mail that may contain classified information but is not marked properly, this mail shall be given to the NASA Security Inspector. (See SOW, Section 5.0)  
Q.7.  The revised cover letter (Amendment 1, posted September 14, 2011) identifies a list of attachments. When comparing this list to the items included in the FBO page containing this opportunity, the following attachments are not provided: F – Safety and Health Plan; H – Organizational Conflict of Interest Avoidance Plan, and I – IT Security Plan. When will these documents be available to proposed offerors?

Answer to Q.7.:  All of these documents are required to be submitted by the offeror.  Attachment F, Safety and Health Plan is to be submitted with the Offeror’s proposal (See Section L.17 Mission Suitability Proposal Instructions (Competitive), 3). Attachment H, Organizational Conflict of Interest Avoidance Plan (See NFS 1852.237-72) and Attachment I, IT Security Management Plan (See NFS 1852.204-76(c)(4)), are to be submitted to the government within 30 days after contract award.  
Q.8. Who will own, install, and maintain AV equipment? Who will train employees on AV equipment?  
Answer to Q.8.:  The Contractor is responsible for installing and maintaining the AV equipment and having the knowledge to perform the A/V tasks as defined in SOW Section 1.0 and Section 13.0.  
Q.9. Is the contractor required to provide move services for the areas being effected by floor renovations?
Answer to Q.9.:  No. The building owner will provide move services for the areas being affected by floor renovations.  
Q.10.  In the Instructions given in Section L, we are to structure the Mission Suitability Proposal after the WBS in the Statement of Work included in Section J as Attachment A .  However, the Statement of Work includes Information Services, Electrical and Drivers, etc.  The instructions given in Section M state to address only the critical elements of the Statement of Work which include “(Library, Archival, Mail Center Operations and Services, Mail Screening Services, Move Services and Audio Visual Services)”.  Additionally, the answer to Amendment 2, Questions and Answers, Question 13, stated Section M. 5, (1) Mission Suitability, Technical Approach, does not include custodial as one of the critical elements of the SOW.  Therefore, a written technical approach for custodial services is not required.

Does it also follow that a written technical approach is not necessary for:

4.0 Headquarters Information Services

6.0 Mail List Services, Postal Design and Classifications

8.0 Facility Help Desk Requirement

11.0 Executive Driver

12.0 Electrical Support Services

14.0 Emergency Preparedness and response

15.0 Headquarters Building Renovations
Answer to Q.10.:  A written technical approach is not required for the statement of work sections 4.0, 6.0, 8.0, 11.0, 12.0, 14.0 and, 15.0.  See Solicitation Sections L.17, Mission Suitability Proposal Instructions (Competitive), Section 3, Mission Suitability Instructions, Technical Approach and; Section M.5 Mission Suitability Factor, Section 1, Mission Suitability, Technical Approach     

Q.11.:  What type of calls does the Help Desk Take?
Answer to Q.11.:  The Help Desk receives all building requests for facilities services at NASA Headquarters to include:  Building Repairs, Moving Services, Handymen Services, Electrical Services, Audio Visual Support, Courier Services, Janitorial Services, Chauffeur Services, Safety hazard reporting, and  Conference Scheduling.
Q.12.   Please provide us a copy of the incumbent's current contract and the incumbent's prior proposal.  We attended the site visit and are looking to submit an offer.  Please let us know if the requested documents are available via email this week if possible.  Any data provided relative to this request would be appreciated. 
Answer to Q.12.:  The requested information must be requested through the Freedom of Information Act.  Requests must be submitted to Office of Communications, Attn:  FOIA, Code 130, Greenbelt, MD 20771, Fax:  301-286-1712, e-mail:  foia@gsfc.nasa.gov
Q.13.  Is Top Secret clearance required for companies responding to this RFP or is Top Secret Clearance required only for the Administrator's Driver?  If Top Secret Clearance is required for the company is NASA willing to sponsor the company for clearance processing after the award?

Answer to Q.13.:  The Top Secret Clearance is required for the Executive Drivers.  In order for an individual to have a Top Secret Security Clearance, the company must have a Top Secret Facility Clearance. No, NASA will not sponsor the company for clearance processing after the award.

Q.14.  What are the hours of operation for the NASA library and what is the estimated customer usage on a weekly/monthly basis?

Answer to Q.14.:  See SOW, Section 2.1, for the operating hours of the NASA HQ Library. See SOW Functional Area, 2.0 of the Historical Workload Analysis document located in the Bidders Library at,  http://www.hq.nasa.gov/HOSS/. 

Q.15  How many sub-contractors currently exist as a part of the NASA Headquarters Operation Support Services (HOSS)? 

Answer to Q.15.:  At the present time, there are two subcontractors on the current NASA Headquarters Operations Support Services contract.

Q.16  Is the facility clearance requirement exclusively a DOD Top Secret Clearance, a NASA Top Secret Facility Clearance or is another equivalent clearance through another agency (DOE, DOS, etc.) acceptable?

Answer to Q.16.:  The Top Secret Clearance may be affiliated with any federal government agency.
Q.17.  Chart 2, Elements of Cost by SOW Work Breakdown Structure (WBS) 9 & 12 are missing.  Will there be an update to include WBS 9 & 12?

Answer to Q.17.:  Please see amendment 3 to include a revision to Exhibit 1, Cost Charts, The cost of WBS 9 is captured in ODC’s section, titled Directed Subcontractor Nonproposed Costs.
Q.18.  Requesting clarification on the technical specifications (C9.14) stating “The contractor shall provide a cleaning product list to include material safety data sheets, and intended use of each of the materials.”  Do we provide this information or will the subcontractor be providing?
Answer to Q.18.:  It is at the offeror’s discretion to determine how this information is provided during the performance of the contract.
Q.19.  The calculations referenced in Section 1 Contract Clauses, page 37, regarding social security appears to be outdated.  We are requesting clarification.

Answer to Q.19.:  Clause I.9 is revised, See Amendment 3.
